
Governor’s Council on Blindness and Visual Impairment (GCBVI) 

Public Information Committee Meeting Minutes  
March 3, 2020 

 
Members Present     

Ted Chittenden              
Janet Fisher 

Dean Colston 
Michael Bailey 

 
Members Absent 

David Steinmetz 
 

Staff Present       
Lindsey Powers     

 

Guests Present  
Christine Tuttle           

_____________________________________________________________ 
 

Call to Order and Introductions 
 

Ted Chittenden called the meeting to order at 2:10 pm in the RSA 
Conference Room, 515 N. 51st Avenue, Suite 130, Phoenix, AZ.  

Introductions were made, and a quorum was present.   
 

Approval of January 14, 2020 Meeting Minutes  
 

Dean Colston moved to approve the minutes of the January 14, 2020 Public 
Information Committee meeting.  Janet Fisher seconded the motion.  The 

minutes were approved by unanimous voice vote.   

 
GCBVI Annual Report Discussion 

 
Ted Chittenden stated he requested that Committee Chairs submit their 

reports for the GCBVI Annual Report by the July Full Council meeting.  Ted 
Chittenden stated that committee members would need to contact 

Vocational Rehabilitation (VR), Foundation for Blind Children (FBC), SAAVI 
Services for the Blind, and the Arizona Center for the Blind and Visually 

Impaired (ACBVI) to request client success stories for the Annual Report.  
Michael Bailey stated he would be happy to help with contacting the 

organizations.  Janet Fisher inquired whether the committee had a template 
that could be shared with the Committee Chairs to assist in developing their 

reports.  Ted Chittenden stated he had sent a template to Committee Chairs 



in the past.  Janet Fisher noted that Dan Martinez sent out draft reports to 

some Committee Chairs, which helped them to create their reports.  Lindsey 
Powers stated that she had a template that could be sent to Committee 

Chairs if they needed assistance.  Ted Chittenden stated that Michael Bailey 
could contact FBC, SAAVI and ACBVI to request the client success stories, 

which could be sent to Lindsey Powers.  Michael Bailey inquired regarding 
the timeline for the success stories.  Ted Chittenden stated the Annual 

Report covered activities from July 1, 2019 until June 30, 2020.  Mr. 
Chittenden noted the Executive Committee had discussed developing a 

position paper in support of additional funding for the Independent Living 
Blind (ILB) program, which he would include in the Annual Report if 

approved by the Full Council.      
 

GCBVI Outreach Discussion 
 

Ted Chittenden stated he was not contacted to participate in the 

Introduction to Blindness workshop for the past two months and was unsure 
whether they had occurred.  Ted Chittenden stated he was unable to reach 

Jordan Moon regarding his participation on the Vision Rehabilitation and 
Assistive Technology Expo (VRATE) Board and inquired whether David 

Steinmetz was on the Board.  Janet Fisher stated that Christine Tuttle was 
on the VRATE Board and could provide an update to the committee.  

Christine Tuttle stated VRATE was scheduled for November 13 from 9:00-
4:00 at the Glendale Civic Center.  Ms. Tuttle stated the event would go 

back to being a one-day event, and noted the event would be able to offer 
CEUs to attendees.  Christine Tuttle stated the VRATE Board had not 

identified a theme for the event, although it would focus on community 
security.  Christine Tuttle stated the VRATE email address was 

VRATEinfo@gmail.com if committee members had any questions regarding 
the event.  Ted Chittenden stated the GCBVI’s Assistive Technology (AT) 

Committee would likely present as well as other committees potentially.  Ted 

Chittenden stated that council member George Martinez, was on the VRATE 
Board, and he would contact Jordan Moon regarding his participation.  Janet 

Fisher stated that Dan Martinez was handling the VRATE speakers and could 
let the council know the types of presentations that VRATE was seeking.  

Ted Chittenden stated he would contact Mr. Martinez regarding the kinds of 
presentations that VRATE would like to see.  Ted Chittenden stated the next 

event would be the Arizona Technology Access Program (AzTAP) Conference.  
Lindsey Powers stated the AzTAP Conference was scheduled for June 8 -9 at 

We-Ko-Pa Resort in Scottsdale/Fountain Hills again.  Ted Chittenden stated 
he would attempt to attend the event both days, although transportation 

was difficult at that location.   
 

 

mailto:VRATEinfo@gmail.com


Database Discussion 

 
Janet Fisher stated she would send out the EyeKnow.AZ database usage 

statistics to the committee members for review.  Ms. Fisher stated that in 
the past, Rehabilitation Services Administration (RSA) would print a 

Resource Directory, although once it was printed, it was often outdated.  
Janet Fisher stated the Secretary of State office hosted the EyeKnow.AZ 

database, which allowed a user to search by category, keyword, or through 
a proximity search.  Janet Fisher stated the database included information 

such as accessible theaters, where to obtain eyeglasses, classes, or disability 
resource centers.  Janet Fisher stated the database had been developed in 

September of 2016 and she tracked the statistics such as the number of 
sessions, the time users visited the site, and the number of pages visited.  

Janet Fisher stated the current statistics were the lowest they had ever 
been, which prompted her to send a query to the Secretary of State IT staff 

regarding the usage statistics.  Ms. Fisher stated she learned that the 

majority of individuals must have visited the Home Page or the Best 
Practices page and did not search the database.  Ted Chittenden stated that 

when he reviewed the statistics for December and January, he noticed that 
several individuals entered a zip code, but left the category blank, and 

received 412 search results.  He noted that when a zip code was left out, 
along with leaving everything else blank, an individual would receive 468 

search results.  Ted Chittenden inquired whether a zip code search would 
only yield organizations with full street addresses.  Janet Fisher stated the 

organization would have to include a zip code in their address and noted that 
some online organizations did not include a zip code.  Ted Chittenden stated 

he also noticed there was a search for Prescott Valley Support Services and 
inquired whether there were services in Prescott Valley.  Michael Bailey 

stated that he had heard about the development of support services in 
Prescott Valley.  Janet Fisher noted there were 4 organizations in Prescott 

and Prescott Valley that were included in the EyeKnow.AZ database, 

although there was no organization specifically for support services.  Ted 
Chittenden stated he could inquire whether Dan Martinez or the Arizona 

Council of the Blind (AzCB) was aware of a support services organization in 
Prescott Valley.   

 
Ted Chittenden stated the committee had also previously discussed 

potentially including predicted text in the database to assist users in 
searching the database.  Mr. Chittenden noted the process would be 

significant work for IT staff and inquired whether the committee members 
had any thoughts regarding that option.  Janet Fisher stated the predicted 

text would be similar to the predicted text on a smart device, which would 
assume what the user was searching for.  Ted Chittenden stated that in his 

experience, JAWS was unable to read the predicted text.  Dean Colston 



noted that he would prefer to have more control over his search terms.  

Janet Fisher inquired how the committee could get more individuals to use 
the database and inquired whether the committee should add more 

categories.  Ms. Fisher stated the database could also include brief 
instructions to assist users in searching the database, such as suggesting 

that users enter less search words.  Janet Fisher stated the instructions 
could say, “For better results, use fewer words”.  Ted Chittenden agreed that 

brief instructions could assist users.  Janet Fisher stated she would inquire 
with the Secretary of State IT staff regarding the possibility of adding that 

suggestion to the database. 
 

Committee Membership Discussion 
 

Ted Chittenden stated that Michael Bailey was the newest committee 
member.  He noted the other committee members were Janet Fisher, 

Talking Book Library, Dean Colston, AzCB member and potential GCBVI 

member, and David Steinmetz, Arizona Industries for the Blind (AIB).  Ted 
Chittenden stated he would like to add more members to the committee, 

and hopefully have 8-10 members.  Ted Chittenden encouraged committee 
members to continue recruitment efforts for the committee.  

 
Social Media Discussion 

 
Ted Chittenden stated that Dean Colston had agreed to develop a council 

Linked In account and inquired regarding its progress.  Dean Colston stated 
he created a Linked In page for the council that was linked to his account.  

Dr. Colston stated he had not added a cover image or any content to the 
page yet.  He noted that he could add Lindsey Powers as an Administrator to 

the page if the committee would prefer.  Ted Chittenden asked that Dean 
Colston give Ms. Powers administrative rights to the account so that she 

could post the same information to both the GCBVI Facebook and the Linked 

In pages.  Janet Fisher inquired whether the Linked In page was up yet.  
Dean Colston stated the Linked In page was up, and he had added some of 

the verbiage from the council Facebook page to the Linked In page.  Janet 
Fisher inquired how the Linked In page was listed.  Dean Colston stated the 

Linked In page was listed under Arizona Governor’s Council on Blindness and 
Visual Impairment, and he linked it to the GCBVI webpage under the 

Department of Economic Security (DES).  Ted Chittenden stated he 
preferred that the Linked In page be consistent with other state entities.  

Dean Colston inquired whether the committee would prefer that he be the 
backup to the Linked In page.  Ted Chittenden stated that Dean Colston was 

welcome to post information to the Linked In page but should notify Lindsey 
Powers so the same information could be added to the council Facebook 



page.  Dean Colston agreed and noted that he could also share information 

to his personal Linked In page as well.   
 

Agenda and Date for Next Meeting 
 

The next meeting of the Public Information Committee will be on Tuesday, 
May 5, 2020, from 2:00 pm to 3:30 pm. in the RSA Conference Room, 

Phoenix, AZ.  Agenda items are as follows:  
 

 GCBVI Annual Report Discussion 

 GCBVI Outreach Discussion 

 Database Discussion 

 Committee Membership Discussion 

 Social Media Discussion 

 
Announcements 

 

Ted Chittenden stated the AzCB Annual Conference would be on Saturday, 
May 2nd at ACBVI.  Mr. Chittenden stated the conference would include 

discussion of different topics followed by breakout discussions and would 
include fewer guest speakers than in the past.  Michael Bailey stated the 

AzCB sent out surveys to organization members to identify the topics that 
members were interested in.   

 
Janet Fisher stated the Talking Book Library’s 50th Anniversary celebration 

would be held on March 19th with an Open House from 9:00-3:00 and guest 
speakers would include the Secretary of State; the Director of the National 

Library Service for the Blind and Print Disabled; Bob Kresmer, GCBVI Chair; 
and potentially, a representative from the Lion’s Foundation.   

 
Public Comment 

 

A call was made to the public with no responses forthcoming. 
 

Adjournment of Meeting 
 

Michael Bailey moved to adjourn the meeting; Janet Fisher seconded the 
motion.  A voice vote was taken, and the motion passed unanimously.  The 

meeting stood adjourned at 3:18 pm. 


